
MINUTES BOOK**TOWN OF COEYMANS   
March 28, 2011 ─ TOWN BOARD MEETING ─ 7:00PM 

1

A Town Board Meeting was held March 28, 2011, at 7:00PM at Town Hall, 18 
Russell Avenue, Ravena, New York  
 
PRESENT:  James C. Youmans, Supervisor 

Dawn Rogers, Councilwoman 
   Thomas A. Boehm, Councilman 
   Richard N. Touchette, Councilman 
   Thomas E. Dolan, Councilman 
       
ALSO PRESENT:  Diane L. Millious, Town Clerk 
   David Wukitsch, Attorney for the Town 
   Greg Darlington, Chief of Police 
   Albert Deering, Highway Superintendent 
 

***************************** 
 
Supervisor Youmans opened the Town Board Meeting and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

***************************** 
 
OPENING COMMENT 
 
Supervisor Youmans stated that he record should reflect the presence of a full Town 
Board in addition to Town Clerk Millious, Attorney for the Town Wukitsch, Chief of 
Police Darlington and Highway Superintendent Deering. 
 

***************************** 
 
AGENDA 

 
 Public Comment 
 Approval of Minutes 

- Town Board Meeting, 03-14-11 
- Town Board Workshop, 03-22-11 

 Supervisor’s Report - February 
 Department Reports 

- Building Department, February 
- Police Department, February 
- Sewer Department, February 
- Town Clerk, February 

 Old Business 
- Speed Limit Reduction – Old Ravena Road 

 New Business 
- Town Hall Roof Replacement 
- Rte. 143 
- Coeymans Hollow Fire District Request 
- Surplus Equipment, Highway Department 

 Resolutions 
- Appoint Code Enforcement Officer 
- Approve Abstract, March 

 Correspondence 
- Albany County Executive 
- Albany County Office of Natural Resources 

 Town Board Workshops / Meetings 
- Town Board Meeting, April 11, 2011, 7:00pm 
- Town Board Workshop, April 19, 2011, 6:00pm 
- Town Board Meeting, April 25, 2011, 7:00pm  

 
 
 
 
 



MINUTES BOOK**TOWN OF COEYMANS   
March 28, 2011 ─ TOWN BOARD MEETING ─ 7:00PM 

2

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Supervisor Youmans invited the public to comment at this time, hearing none he moved 
to the next item on the agenda. 
 

***************************** 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Supervisor Youmans stated that there were two sets of Minutes for Town Board approval, 
a Town Board Meeting on March 14th and a Town Board Workshop on March 22nd and 
continued by asking for a motion to approve them. 
 
MOTION 
 
On motion of Councilman Boehm, seconded by Councilwoman Rogers, the minutes were 
approved as read. 
VOTE – AYES 5 – NAYS 0 – SO MOVED 
 

***************************** 
 
SUPERVISOR’S REPORT 
 
February 2011 
 

FUND BAL. FWD. RECEIPTS DISBURSEMENTS BALANCE 
     
General $1,488,842.06 $ 848,375.89 $1,928,887.19    $ 408,330.76 
     
Part-Town $   305,362.17 $ 215,532.62 $   212,703.65     $ 308,191.14 
     
Highway $   171,669.39 $        480.29 $     50,303.01 $ 121,846.67 
     
Bridge Const. $       4,265.36 $          25.56 -0- $     4,290.92 
     
Sewer $   126,567.67 $ 212,115.06 $  223,363.34 $ 115,319.39 
     
Special Water $            26.00 $   51,375.92 $      4,712.95 $   46,688.97 
     
Police Forf. $       6,875.53 $     5,119.28 $         430.00 $   11,564.81 
     
Trust & Agcy. $     18,588.00 $ 227,429.41 $ 227,429.41 $   18,980.51 
     
Capital Proj. $   364,816.06 $        113.71 $   65,203.00 $ 299,726.77 
     
Section 8 HUD 
Units -78 

$   127,909.81 $   39,307.58 $  41,826.87 $ 125,390.52 

   Total Rec. Bal. $1,460,330.46 
 
SAVINGS ACCOUNTS COLLATERAL COV.   FDIC COV. COLLARERALIZED 

 

Unemployment  $  4,071.01  Bank of Greene             $250,000.00    $3,497,611.70      
Grove Cem.    $40,831.74    National Bank              $250,000.00    $   629,399.63        
C/H Cemetery    $14,333.79  
Sewer – Ded.    $  6,315.62 
            Total      $65,552.16   
 
Supervisor Youmans asked for a motion to approve the report. 
 
 
 
 



MINUTES BOOK**TOWN OF COEYMANS   
March 28, 2011 ─ TOWN BOARD MEETING ─ 7:00PM 

3

MOTION 
 
On motion of Councilman Touchette, seconded by Councilman Boehm, the Supervisor’s 
Report was accepted as presented and read. 
VOTE – AYES 5 – NAYS 0 – SO MOVED 
 

***************************** 
 
DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
 
Building Department – February  
 
Supervisor Youmans asked that Councilwoman Rogers give the Building Department 
Monthly Report. 
 
Councilwoman Rogers continued by giving the report. 
 
Supervisor Youmans asked for a motion to approve the report. 
 
MOTION 
 
On motion of Councilman Touchette, seconded by Councilman Boehm, the report was 
accepted as presented and read. 
VOTE – AYES 5 – NAYS 0 – SO MOVED 
 
Police Department – February 
 
Supervisor Youmans asked that Chief Darlington give the Police Department Monthly 
Report. 
 
Chief Darlington continued by giving his report. 
 
Supervisor Youmans asked for a motion to approve the report. 
 
MOTION 
 
On motion of Councilman Boehm, seconded by Councilwoman Rogers, the report was 
accepted as presented and read. 
VOTE – AYES 5 – NAYS 0 – SO MOVED 
 
Sewer Department – February 
 
Supervisor Youmans asked that Councilman Touchette give the Sewer Department 
Monthly Report. 
 
Councilman Touchette continued by giving the report. 
 
Supervisor Youmans asked for a motion to approve the report. 
 
MOTION 
 
On motion of Councilman Boehm, seconded by Councilman Dolan, the report was 
accepted as presented and read. 
VOTE – AYES 5 – NAYS 0 – SO MOVED 
 
Town Clerk – February 
 
Supervisor Youmans asked that Town Clerk Millious give the Town Clerk’s Monthly 
Report. 
 
Town Clerk Millious continued by giving her report. 
 



MINUTES BOOK**TOWN OF COEYMANS   
March 28, 2011 ─ TOWN BOARD MEETING ─ 7:00PM 

4

Supervisor Youmans asked for a motion to approve the report. 
 
MOTION 
 
On motion of Councilwoman Rogers, seconded by Councilman Dolan, the report was 
accepted as presented and read. 
VOTE – AYES 5 – NAYS 0 – SO MOVED 
 

***************************** 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
Speed Limit Reduction on Old Ravena Road 
 
Supervisor Youmans stated that on January 10th, Mr. Vadney, a resident of Old Ravena 
Road appeared before the Board and asked them to have the speed limit lowered on Old 
Ravena Road. He continued by saying that he was in receipt of a correspondence from 
Mark Kennedy, Regional Transportation System Operations Engineer with the 
Department of Transportation and indicated that he has received the necessary 
documentation from the Town and he seems to be moving ahead with the Town’s request 
to lower the speed limit on Old Ravena Road. He concluded by saying that he is waiting 
further correspondence from him. 
 
Supervisor Youmans asked if there were any other Old Business topics to discuss. 
 
Councilwoman Rogers stated that she believes that they should bring up the salt shed 
again and added that Albert’s crew had a difficult winter this year and during a couple 
major storms there was no material for the Town roads and Albert had to go elsewhere to 
find some. She continued by saying that the Coeymans Division got material either 
during or after the storm and added that the issue that she has is that the DPW from 
Bethlehem merged with Coeymans and the County had a verbal agreement that they 
would maintain Bethlehem roads and if the County was not maintaining Bethlehem roads 
there would be an ample supply to take care of Albert’s crew.   
 
Supervisor Youmans stated that when he was new on the Board there was talk of grant 
money being available at some point for the Town to build their own salt shed and added 
that there is a suitable place to do it at the old landfill site. He continued by asking 
Highway Superintendent Deering how he went about obtaining salt before the Town 
started getting salt from the County. 
 
Highway Superintendent Deering stated that he got it through State Contract and the salt 
was stored at the Highway Garage and then it was moved to the landfill. 
 
Supervisor Youmans inquired as to if the salt was undercover at the landfill. 
 
Highway Superintendent Deering stated that they covered it with canvas. 
 
Supervisor Youmans stated that he would agree with Councilwoman Rogers that in order 
for Highway Superintendent Deering to effectively manage snow removal and road 
treatment and responsibilities, it is critical for him to plan ahead to make sure that he has 
the material that he needs to put on the roads. He then asked Highway Superintendent 
Deering if he is aware of any grant opportunities at this stage. 
 
Highway Superintendent Deering stated that he has not heard of any. 
 
Councilwoman Rogers stated that she had spoken to Highway Clerk Biance and she is 
looking into that. 
 
Supervisor Youmans stated that some steps to take toward that would be to find out what 
a shed would cost the Town to construct as well as to look to see what funding 
opportunities are out there to do so. He added that they all understand the dilemma that 
when it is time to put salt on the roads, the Town residents and taxpayers expect the roads 



MINUTES BOOK**TOWN OF COEYMANS   
March 28, 2011 ─ TOWN BOARD MEETING ─ 7:00PM 

5

to be salted and if they don’t have any control over the availability of salt it is 
problematic. 
 
Supervisor Youmans asked if there were any other Old Business topics to discuss, 
hearing none he moved to the next item on the agenda. 
 

***************************** 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Town Hall Roof Replacement 
 
Supervisor Youmans stated that in looking at the ceiling in Town Hall you will see spots 
from where there was leaking this past winter and they came to a determination that 
because the roof was not properly vented and the attic has very little insulation, it caused 
ice damming and buildup and backup on the roof. He continued by saying that Town 
employees purchased insulation to insulate the attic and alleviate the problem and in the 
course of doing that they found multiple places on the roof where the plywood is wet and 
water is coming in. He added that it was confirmed that the only way to repair that and to 
keep water from leaking, is to go ahead and replace the roof and in turn they got four 
quotes from different contractors and the low bid was from Wolfe Builders. He went on 
by saying that for full disclosure, the owner of Wolfe Builders is his brother-in-law and 
he would recuse himself from any further conversation or voting and would be passing it 
on to Councilman Touchette. 
 
Councilman Touchette stated that as Supervisor Youmans had mentioned, the low bidder 
is Wolfe Builders and he would move that they accept the bid to replace the roof in the 
amount of $14,300.00. 
 
MOTION 
 
On motion of Councilman Touchette, seconded by Councilman Dolan, to accept the bid 
from Wolfe Builders for material and labor in the amount of $14,300.00. 
VOTE – AYES 4 – NAYS 0 – ABSTAIN 1 (Supervisor Youmans) – SO MOVED 
 
Route 143 
 
Supervisor Youmans stated that Councilman Boehm wrote a letter in response to a 
meeting that he had with Mary Ivy, Regional Director of New York State Department of 
Transportation Region I, relative to the condition of Rte. 143. 
 
Councilman Boehm stated that he actually had a phone conversation with Mary Ivy, and 
it was relative to the section of Rte. 143 from Biechman Road to Nolan Road. He added 
that last year DOT did a Value Placement Paving Project from Greenbush Avenue to 
Biechman Road where they patched holes, put down a sub layer then a top coat and they 
plan on doing the same project from Biechman Road to Nolan Road to fill in that gap as 
soon as the weather thaws and the budget is in place. He continued by saying that he will 
stay in touch with Mary Ivy and she is very receptive to the idea and according to her 
there is no long-term proposed project for the bank in front of Osterhout’s or where 
Gedney Hill is but they do see the immediate need to repave and improve the road. He 
added that in the letter he wrote to her, he made reference to a Traffic Safety and 
Mobility Report that was done on Rte. 143 and asked her to provide the Town Board with 
a copy of the report that was done last year and hopefully that will shed some more light 
on that as they continue to pursue long-term options for Rte. 143. He concluded by 
saying that it is good news and hopefully it will be done early in the spring. 
 
Supervisor Youmans thanked Councilman Boehm for initiative and tenacity on that 
matter. 
 
Councilman Boehm interjected that it is a toss-up as to whether it is Old or New Business  
because it is not a new problem and added that he would like to thank Ivan and Doris 



MINUTES BOOK**TOWN OF COEYMANS   
March 28, 2011 ─ TOWN BOARD MEETING ─ 7:00PM 

6

Millett and the many constituents out in Coeymans Hollow for their letter writing and 
correspondence to Mary Ivy supporting this.  
 
Councilman Touchette stated that in addition to that he had a meeting with Assemblyman 
Speaker McLaughlin last week and they talked about Rte. 143 and he agrees and thinks 
that it is the worst road in his Assembly District, which says a lot. He added that he plans 
to speak with Mary Ivy himself as well as Senator Breslin and if necessary Congressman 
Tonko and concluded by saying that he is following through from his side and if people 
in the Town and on the Board continue to press for this they might have a long term 
solution. 
 
Coeymans Hollow Fire District Request 
 
Supervisor Youmans stated he was in receipt of a request from the Board of 
Commissioners at the Coeymans Hollow Fire District for three additional fuel keys for 
the District. He added that they purchase their fuel through the Town of Coeymans and 
use the Town’s facilities to fuel their vehicles. He continued by saying that attached to 
their request is their Reimbursement Policy and then asked if anyone had anything that 
they wanted to add or if there were any questions. 
 
Councilman Boehm stated that he wanted to specify that the Coeymans Hollow Fire 
District purchases their fuel from the Town Highway Garage so they can take advantage 
of the cost savings and added that the Town does not provide the fuel to them. He 
continued by saying that he believes that it is a good Shared Services Agreement that 
everyone benefits from and then offered a motion. 
 
MOTION 
 
On motion of Councilman Boehm, seconded by Councilwoman Rogers, authorizing 
Highway Superintendent Deering to issue three new keys 601, 602, & 603 so they can 
fuel their vehicles as prescribed in the Fuel Reimbursement Policy provided by the Board 
of Commissioners. 
VOTE – AYES 5 – NAYS 0 – SO MOVED 
 
Highway Superintendent Deering asked to get something in writing from the Board. 
 
Supervisor Youmans stated that he would see that it gets it in writing. 
 
Surplus Equipment – Highway Department 
 
Supervisor Youmans stated that there is request from Highway Superintendent Deering to 
have Auctions International auction off some surplus equipment as follows: 1993 Toro 
CCR 2000 Snow Blower, 1989 Snapper Push Lawn Mower, 1994 Sarbo Commercial 
Push Lawn Mower and 1975 John Deere 214 Riding Lawn Mower. He then asked if there 
were any questions or comments. 
 
Councilman Boehm stated that they met them in New York City and then asked Chief 
Darlington if he uses Auctions International for Police surplus. 
 
Councilwoman Rogers interjected that they could not find the Town in their data base 
and then asked Highway Superintendent Deering if he really has a 1975 John Deere 
tractor. 
 
Highway Superintendent Deering stated that there is and added that the motor blew. 
 
MOTION 
 
On motion of Councilman Boehm, seconded by Councilman Dolan, authorizing Highway  
Superintendent Deering to list the 1993 Toro Blower, 1989 Snapper Push Mower, 1994 
Sarbo Commercial Push Mower and 1975 John Deere Riding Lawn Mower. 
VOTE – AYES 5 – NAYS 0 – SO MOVED 
 



MINUTES BOOK**TOWN OF COEYMANS   
March 28, 2011 ─ TOWN BOARD MEETING ─ 7:00PM 

7

RESOLUTIONS 
 
RES. #47-11 APPOINT PART-TIME CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER 
On motion of Councilman Touchette, seconded by Councilwoman Rogers, the following 
resolution was APPROVED – VOTE – AYES 5 – NAYS 0 – SO MOVED 
 
WHEREAS, Sante DeBacco, Assistant Building Inspector (part-time), was appointed to 
that title via Resolution #97-05, dated September 12, 2005, and 
 
WHEREAS, Mr. DeBacco has also taken and passed the Code Enforcement Officer 
examination #200569455 on the same day as the Assistant Building Inspector, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Building Department is desirous of having Mr. DeBacco fill both titles 
on a part-time basis, 
 
WHEREAS, the Town Board has confirmed with Albany County Department of Civil 
Service that Mr. DeBacco had taken, and passed with a ranking of #2 on the list, the Code 
Enforcement Officer Examination #2005694455 in 2005, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Albany County Department of Civil Service states that this list is still 
valid and advised the Town Board that they may appoint Mr. DeBacco to this title 
retroactively, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Town Board of the Town of 
Coeymans, does hereby appoint Sante DeBacco as Code Enforcement Officer from the 
aforementioned list, effective September 12, 2005, and his rate of pay to remain the same. 
 
Councilman Boehm asked Supervisor Youmans for clarification. 
 
Supervisor Youmans stated that basically it was an oversight and added that he took the 
Building Inspector Test and Code Enforcement Officer Test and they appointed him as 
Building Inspector when in fact Building Inspector and Code Enforcement Officers have 
different duties. He added that by only listing him only as a Building Inspector, there are 
other duties that he could performing with the title of Code Enforcement Officer. He 
concluded by saying that it is a Civil Service classification and it is not a raise or change 
in his job and really no different other than now he can legally perform other duties. 
 
RES. #48-11 APPROVE MARCH ABSTRACT 
On motion of Councilman Boehm, seconded by Councilman Dolan, the following 
resolution was APPROVED – VOTE – AYES 5 – NAYS 0 – SO MOVED 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, that the Town Board, of the Town of Coeymans, does hereby 
approve the following claims of vouchers for the March, 2011. 
 

FUND VOUCHER # AMOUNT 
   

GENERAL (A)   
General Pre-Pay 512-573 $1,565,286.36 
General 619-677 $     36,095.57 
              
        General Total    $1,601,381.93 
   
PART-TOWN (B)   
Part-Town Pre-Pay 574-586 $   213,145.49 
Part-Town 678-681 $       1,179.89 
              
            Part Town Total  $   214,325.38 
   
HIGHWAY (DB)              
Highway Pre-Pay 587-596 $    54,850.11 
Highway 682-720,734 $    12,493.14 



MINUTES BOOK**TOWN OF COEYMANS   
March 28, 2011 ─ TOWN BOARD MEETING ─ 7:00PM 

8

            Highway Total $    67,343.25 
   
SEWER (SS)   
Sewer Pre-Pay 597-613 $     46,019.04 
Sewer 721-733 $       5,152.47 
   
            Sewer Total $     51,171.51  
CAPITAL PROJ. (H35)   
Cap. Proj. Sewer Pre-Pay 614 $     29,295.32 
Cap. Proj. Sewer 735 $       1,496.50 
            Capital Proj. Total $     30,791.82 
   
            Total For All Funds $1,965,013.89 
   
TRUST & AGENCY (TA)   
Trust & Agency Pre-Pay 615-618  $  218,546.43 
   
           Trust & Agcy. Total  $  218,546.43 
   
 

***************************** 
 
CORRESPONDENCE 
 
Albany County Executive 
 
Supervisor Youmans stated that he had a correspondence from Albany County Executive 
Michael Breslin and continued by reading the following: 
 
Dear Mr. Youmans, 
 
Albany County is submitting an application for New York State Community 
Development Block Grant Program. The deadline for the application is May 27, 2011. 
 
Previously, Albany County was awarded $750,000.00 from the Office of Community 
Renewal and successfully rehabilitated thirty-three residential units within the County. 
We are reapplying for an additional $750,000.00 to continue housing rehabilitation for 
low to moderate income individuals. 
 
We are asking that you write a letter of support for this application, send it to the NYS 
Office of Community Renewal at the address in the attached sample letter, and send us a 
copy before May 27th. We will also include a copy in our application package to the NYS 
Office of Community Renewal. 
 
If you have any questions, please contact Elizabeth Staubach at 447-5667 or at 
Elizabeth.staubach@albanycounty.com. Thank you very much for your participation and 
support. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Michael G. Breslin 
 
Supervisor Youmans asked the Town Board how they feel about it. 
 
Councilman Dolan stated that even though they are not a small city and will probably not 
get any money, he does not think that it would be a problem to send a letter of support. 
 
Supervisor Youmans asked if anyone had anything to add, hearing none he continued by 
saying that he will send a letter of support. 
 
 

mailto:Elizabeth.staubach@albanycounty.com


MINUTES BOOK**TOWN OF COEYMANS   
March 28, 2011 ─ TOWN BOARD MEETING ─ 7:00PM 

9

Albany County Office of Natural Resources 
 
Supervisor Youmans stated that he was in receipt of a correspondence from Albany 
County Office of Natural Resources and continued by reading the following: 
 
Dear Supervisor, 
 
The Albany County Agriculture and Farmland Protection Board recently completed a 
review of applications for inclusion in Albany County’s Agricultural Districts pursuant to 
Agriculture and Markets Law 25AA Section 303-b. Through this law, the County 
Legislature established an annual 30-day period beginning February 1, during which, 
landowners can request the inclusion of viable farmland within a certified agricultural 
district. 
 
The annual review of Albany County Agricultural Districts for 2011 have been 
completed. Recommendations have been made by the Albany County Agricultural and 
Farmland Protection Board that include parcels in the Town of Bethlehem (see attached). 
 
A Public Hearing will be held in t he Legislative Chambers, first floor Cahill Room, 112 
State St., Albany at 7:15pm on Tuesday, March 29, 2011 for the purpose of receiving 
comments regarding proposed modifications to Agricultural Districts in Albany County. 
 
If you have any questions regarding the Agricultural District review or the scheduled 
Public Hearing, please feel free to contact me at (518) 447-5670 or 
Ldegaetano@albanycounty.com. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Laura DeGaetano 
Senior Natural Resources Planner 
Albany County Office of Natural Resources 
 
Supervisor Youmans stated this was for informational purposed and added that there is a 
12.6 acre parcel in the Town of Coeymans that they recommend adding. 
 

***************************** 
 
TOWN BOARD WORKSHOPS / MEETINGS 
 

 Town Board Meeting, April 11, 2011, 7:00pm 
 Town Board Workshop, April 19, 2011, 6:00, pm 
 Town Board Meeting, April 25, 2011, 7:00pm 

 
***************************** 

 
ADDITIOINAL COMMENTS 
 
Supervisor Youmans stated that he wanted to thank the Police Officers that participated 
in the Police Athletic League’s Free Throw Event and added that he understands that it 
was very well attended. He continued by saying that he thinks that it is a good positive 
step for the Police to reach out to the youth of the community and impact them in a 
positive way. He went on by saying that they volunteered, did it on their own time and 
there were many and reiterated that he wanted to thank those from the Police Department 
that did it and it is important and he is pleased that they did it and then asked that Chief 
Darlington pass it along. 
 
Supervisor Youmans asked if there were any additional comments. 
 
Councilman Boehm stated that he attended the Police Athletic Event and added that he 
wanted to specifically congratulate Officer Thompson and McMullen in their leadership 
of the Program. He continued by saying that there were over 45 children there who had a 
great time and got to participate and added that it was a great first event and he hopes it 

mailto:Ldegaetano@albanycounty.com


MINUTES BOOK**TOWN OF COEYMANS   
March 28, 2011 ─ TOWN BOARD MEETING ─ 7:00PM 

10

was one of many more. He went on by saying that Anatriello Insurance celebrated their 
50th Anniversary and he attended their Open House and he wanted to congratulate them 
and added that anyone in business 50 years deserves some congratulations. 
 
Supervisor Youmans asked if there were any other comments. 
 
Attorney for the Town Wukitsch stated that he wanted to mention to the Board and Town 
Clerk Millious is aware, that Mr. Wickham had been before them a few times in regard to 
his plan to build an addition to his house and he has been working with Code 
Enforcement Officer Conrad. He added that as he dug deeper into it, he is going to need 
to do more research because Mr. Wickham’s attorney presented them with a deed that he 
wanted to be conveyed of Old Gedney Hill, which was abandoned years ago and his 
understanding is that once a road is abandoned, the property automatically reverts to the 
abutting land owners and you don’t really need a deed because it is abandoned. He 
continued by saying that with a deed it could impact other properties adjoining and as a 
result it is going to require some more research and he knows that he is very anxious to 
obtain a Building Permit but at the same time they don’t want it to impact any neighbors 
adversely. 
 
Supervisor Youmans stated that to clarify it, in order to build the addition he needs to 
prove that the land that he is building it on belongs to him. 
 
Attorney for the Town Wukitsch stated that he believes that it does but then there is the 
question as to how he proves it and added by virtue of abandonment that occurred years 
ago, when the Town abandoned the road his research leads him to believe that the 
property automatically reverts to the abutting land owner, so there is no necessity for a 
deed because there is nothing to deed because they abandoned it and there is no 
ownership interest in the road. He added that he is afraid by conveying a deed, although it 
looks like an easy fix, they may be interfering with someone else’s property rights. 
 
Supervisor Youmans interjected that in doing so, it opens the Town to future liability. He 
thanked Attorney for the Town Wukitsch and then asked if there were any other 
comments. 
 
Chief of Police Darlington stated that he wanted to thank his Department for the Pal 
Program, which was attended by approximately 40 youth as well as 22 volunteers that 
consisted of employees of the Police Department, Communications and some spouses. 
He added that it was really nice that some Officers stayed a good two hours after the 
tournament to play basketball with some of the kids and some parents got involved, and it 
was nice to see something positive. He continued by saying that currently the Police 
Department is organizing a Bicycle Rodeo for late April and it will hopefully be at Pieter 
B. Elementary and kids can actually get their bikes there without being transported. He 
went on by saying that in this week’s News Herald there was an article about Cuddle 
Buddies and two SCCLA members, Morgan LaDuke and Emma Hughes made the 
stuffed animals and provided them to the Police Department earlier in the day. He added 
that they will be used when they have incidents involving small children to try and calm 
them down and to make a situation a little better and he wanted to thank them for 
working hard on them and they were able to do it all within a month. He went on by 
saying that he thinks that it is going to be a successful program thanks to two middle 
school kids who had the vision to come up with it. He continued by saying that in 
reference to car 920 that was damaged in the flood, the appraiser came back and said that 
he is 100% sure that the insurance is going to pay for the damages to that vehicle, which 
is good news. He went on by saying that as of today his car is out of service and he was at 
a call and fuel started pouring out of it and it appears that the gas tank and the fuel lines 
have rotted out of it and he has an estimate of approximately $800.00 just for parts to fix 
it. He continued by saying that they are starting to get back to where their cars are less 
and less and right now the 921 has 153,000 miles on it and the replacement car is due in 
June or July and they now know that that insurance will cover the 920 and hopefully they 
can get it in and have it fixed. He added that he is looking for direction as far as what he 
should do with his vehicle and maybe they can discuss and figure out a plan. 
 
Supervisor Youmans asked Chief Darlington how he was getting home. 



MINUTES BOOK**TOWN OF COEYMANS   
March 28, 2011 ─ TOWN BOARD MEETING ─ 7:00PM 

11

Chief Darlington stated that he will probably have one of the police cars bring him home. 
 
Supervisor Youmans stated that his recommendation for what he should do right now, is 
to drive one of the patrol cars home. 
 
Chief Darlington stated that possibly he can and added that they average three cars on the 
road and this is about what they have in service and 921 with 153,000 miles has some 
mechanical issues. 
 
Supervisor Youmans stated that for the record they have updated their fleet of police 
vehicles based on the recommendations that Chief Darlington made and the information 
that they had. He added that there is one inbound to replace the one that is on its way out 
and as far as patrol vehicles go, they have updated the fleet and continued by saying that 
the last issue that they have is the vehicle that he uses and they are working through 
replacing it as they speak and there some equipment needs that he is currently working 
diligently on. He went on by saying that his thoughts would be to take what is out there 
tonight and whether or not they spend the $800.00 to fix his car is a decision that they 
would have to think about. 
 
Chief Darlington stated that there are other issues that are underlying that will determine 
whether it actually passes inspection, which is up the 31st. 
 
Supervisor Youmans stated that it is absolutely ridiculous for them to be in that position 
with a vehicle. 
 
Chief Darlington stated that he will contemplate taking a vehicle home and added that he 
is not comfortable having a marked police car sitting in his driveway, which is a safety 
issue not only for himself but also his family. He added that unfortunately he does not 
have the ability to be there 100% of the time with a marked police car in his driveway 
and his kids in the yard. 
 
Supervisor Youmans stated that he would think that it would make his house the safest on 
the street and added that they will work through it. 
 
Supervisor Youmans asked if there were any further comments, hearing none he asked 
for a motion to adjourn the meeting. 
 

***************************** 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
MOTION 
 
On motion of Councilman Boehm, seconded by Councilman Dolan, the Town Board 
Meeting was adjourned. 
VOTE – AYES 5 – NAYS 0 – SO MOVED 
 
Time: 7:45pm 
 
Respectfully Submitted,   APPROVED: 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Diane L. Millious, Town Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


	PUBLIC COMMENT
	APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	SUPERVISOR’S REPORT
	DEPARTMENT REPORTS
	OLD BUSINESS
	Speed Limit Reduction on Old Ravena Road

	NEW BUSINESS
	Town Hall Roof Replacement
	Route 143
	Coeymans Hollow Fire District Request
	Surplus Equipment

	RESOLUTIONS
	RES. #47-11 APPOINT PART-TIME
	RES. #48-11 APPROVE MARCH ABSTRACT

	CORRESPONDENCE
	Albany County Executive

	ADDITIOINAL COMMENTS

